
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                     (APRIL 22, 2025) (Week 17 of 2025) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

                                                                                                   
      
Daniel A. Bittinger II          Kent T. Carper             David L. Dietrich        Mark E. Nelson          Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         570-7681                         870-9224                       540-1259                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov          ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov    mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov      matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 

You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held April 22, 2025, 
at 4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of 
taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly 
come before the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. 
Members of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board 
of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board.  
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation 
on concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place 
after properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when 
approved by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a 
subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
  

3:00 p.m.   Joint Closed Session with the LEC Authority {Iowa Code Chapter 21.5(1)(c)} 

                   Dennis Butler Meeting Room 

 

4:30 p.m.   Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence   

        
                   1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action                       
 

                Consent Agenda 

        Items 2 through 4 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one 

motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member.   

                  

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the April 15, 2025, meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims 

 

                    4.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                        Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                           

End of Consent Agenda 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.
mailto:kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

 

 

                   5.  Secondary Roads – Laura Sievers 

                        a.  Receive bids for Pavement Markings – 2025 and return them to the county             Action 

                             engineer for review and recommendation 

                        b.  Award bid if low quote is clearly determined by bid results                                        Action 

 

                  6.  Deputy County Recorder – Diane Swoboda Peterson 

                       Approval to have the Treasurer’s Office refund the county portion of Transfer               Action 

                       Tax in the amount of $487.55 to the Buchanan, Bibler, Gabor & Meis 

                        Law Firm 

 

                  7.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger 

                       Approval of consent for the LEC Authority’s use of $717,863.12 worth of funds             Action 

                       provided by the County under the 05/17/2022 Board of Supervisors board action  

                       item for the additional project-related purposes of legal fees and costs,  

                       expert/consultant fees, project engineering/design fees, and owner fees 

 

                  8.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger & Mark Nelson 

                       Approval of amendment to Development Agreement for AGP, Inc.                                Action 

                                  
                  9.  Budget Review Discussion for FY 26 

                       a.  Miscellaneous Review and Action – All Funds                                                        Action 

 
                10.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                               Information                                                              
 
                11.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                       Information 
 
                12.  Board Concerns                                                                                                        Information   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
TUE. APR 22      12:00 p.m.     Sioux City Conference Board Meeting, City Hall Council Chambers 
               
WED., APR 23     1:00 p.m.      Region IV Hazardous Materials Response Commission, 6401 Gordon Dr. 
 
                             2:30 p.m.      Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
MON., APR 28     5:00 p.m.      Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom              
 
MON., MAY 5       5:00 p.m.     Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 
 
WED., MAY 7       7:30 a.m.     SIMPCO Executive/Finance Committee, 6401 Gordon Drive   
 
                             4:45 p.m.     Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  
 
THU., MAY 8      12:00 p.m.     SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive.   
 
                             4:00 p.m.     Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
                                
WED., MAY 14     7:30 a.m.    SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr.  
 
                             8:05 a.m.     Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                           12:00 p.m.     District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 
 
                             6:30 p.m.     911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill     
 
THU., MAY 15    12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Regional Policy and Legislative Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr.  
 
                             4:30 p.m.    Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
FRI., MAY 16     11:00 p.m.    Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                 
                             
WED., MAY 21   12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 
THU., MAY 22    10:00 a.m.    Siouxland Regional Transit System Board of Directors Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr. 
 
                            11:15 a.m.   Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund, 6401 Gordon Dr. 
 

MON., MAY 26     5:00 p.m.    Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom           

WED., MAY 28     2:30 p.m.    Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 

                
                                                               
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                             
  
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable 
accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the 
Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national 
origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil 
Rights Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to 
access the Iowa Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



APRIL 15, 2025, SIXTEENTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, April 15, 2025, at 4:30 p.m. Board members present were Carper, Nelson, 
Bittinger II, and Ung; Dietrich was absent. Staff members present were Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, Karen 
James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Director, Ryan Ericson, Budget and Finance 
Director, and Michelle Skaff, Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to amend the agenda postpone approval of LEC Authorities use of funds 

until next week’s meeting. Carried 3-0. 
 

Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the agenda for April 15, 2025. Carried 3-0.  Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the April 8, 2025 meeting.  Copy filed. 
    
3. To approve the claims totaling $590,258.19.  Copy filed. 
 
4a. To receive County Recorder’s report of fees collected for the period of 01/01/2025 through 03/31/2025.  Copy 

filed. 
 
4b. To receive the County Auditor’s Quarterly report for the period of January 1, 2025 through March 31,2025.  Copy 

filed. 
 
5a. To approve the separation of Austin Svendsen, Jail Sergeant, County Sheriff Dept., effective 04-04-2025.  

Separation; the promotion of Devan Amick, Jail Sergeant, County Sheriff Dept., effective 04-14-2025, $36.76/hour, 
37%=$9.90/hr.  Per Captain Harlow- Promoted to Sergeant.; the other of Brandon Chapple, Jail Sergeant, County 
Sheriff Dept., effective 04-14-2025.  Changing Effective Date of Promotion from 4/16/25 to 4/14/25.; the 
appointment of Giovanni Padilla, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 04-16-2025, $24.57/hour.  Job 
Vacancy Posted on 9/12/2025.  Entry Level Salary: $24.57/hr.; the appointment of Brayden Bumsted, Civilian Jailer, 
County Sheriff Dept., effective 04-16-2025, $24.57/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted 9/12/25.  Entry Level Salary 
$24.57/hr.; and the appointment of Darren Bryant, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 04-16-2025, 
$24.57/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted on 9/18/2025.  Entry Level Salary: $24.57/hr.  Copy filed. 

 
5b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, 

County Sheriff Dept.  CWA Civilian: $24.57/hour.; and for Jail Sergeant, County Sheriff Dept. CWA Civilian: 
$36.76/hour.  Copy filed. 

 
6a.  To approve the property tax refund request for Michael Baird, parcel #874511200006, 2346 Hancock Ave., in the 

amount of $2015.00.  Copy filed. 
 
6b. To approve the property tax refund request for Alicia Rios, parcel #894730206006, 2104 Villa Ave., in the amount 

of $798.00.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 3-0. 
 
The Board recessed for a meeting of the Orton Slough Drainage District Trustees Meeting. 
 
The Supervisors meeting was called back to order. 
 
8. Motion by Nelson second by Carper to approve a sergeant position in the Sheriff’s office. Carried 3-0. Copy filed.  
 
9a. Motion by Bittinger second by Carper to approve the worker’s compensation High-Level Risk Management Action 

Plan Agreement.  Carried 3-0.  Copy filed. 
 



April 15, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 2 
 

9b. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the collective bargaining agreement with CWA Deputy Civilian 
Jailers for 2025-2028.  Carried 3-0.  Copy filed. 

 
9c. Motion by Nelson second by Carper to approve the wage reopener agreement with CWA Deputy Sheriffs for 2025-

2026.  Carried 3-0.  Copy filed. 
 
 @4:48pm Ung joined the meeting by phone. 
 
11a1. Secondary Roads District Foremen Micheal Andresen, Conservation Director Dan Heissel,  Sheriff Chad Sheehan, 

County Attorney James Loomis, and HR Director Melissa Thomas spoke in favor of a pay increase for the wage plan 
employees.   

 
Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve a 3% pay increase for wage plan employees for FY26 budget.  
Carried 4-0.  Copy filed. 

 
11a2. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve purchasing 23 computer squad car tablets for the Woodbury 

County Sheriff’s office for FY26 in the amount of $85,234.38 out of Gaming Funds.  Carried 4-0.  Copy filed. 
  
11b.. The board conducted a miscellaneous review of the budget. 
 

Motion by Nelson second by Ung to increase the FY26 Building Services expenses by $150,000 to pay for well 
capping at the old LEC. Carried 4-0. 

 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to increase revenue for the US Marshall inmates by $600,000 for FY26, Carried 4-
0. 

  
12.           Reports on committee meetings were heard. 

 
13. Conservation Director Dan Heissel, Sheriff Chad Sheehan, and Secondary Roads District Foremen Michael Andresen 

thanked the board for approving a wage increase for the wage plan group.  
 
14. Board Concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until April 22, 2025. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
  



     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _April 22nd, 2025_                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

 

Sherrill, 

Courtney 

 

 

Attorney’s Office 

 

 

04-03-2025 

 

 

Clerk II 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

S 

 

 

Resigned 

 

 

 

Hernandez, 

Leticia 

 

 

 

Treasurer 

 

 

04-23-2025 

 

 

Clerk II - Tax 

 

 

$19.24/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

11/27/2024. 

Entry Level 

Salary: 

$19.24/hr. 

 

 

Cox, Katrina 

 

 

 

 

Treasurer 

 

 

 

04-28-2025 

 

 

 

 Clerk II - MV 

 

 

$20.14/hour 

 

 

 

 

5%=$0.90/hr 

 

 

R 

Per AFSCME- 

Move from 

Step 1 to Step 

2. Anniversary 

Date: 5/1/2025. 

 

Peters, 

Shelley 

 

 

 

Building Services 

 

 

04-28-2025 

 

 

Custodian 

 

 

$17.29/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

3/19/2025. 

Entry Level 

Salary: $17.29 

 

 

Gotto, Nathan 

 

 

 

 

Secondary Roads 

 

 

05-05-2025 

 

Summer 

Laborer - Temp 

 

 

$17.00/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

2/12/25. Entry 

Level Salary 

$17.00/hr 

 

Dunnington, 

Collin 

 

 

 

Secondary Roads 

 

 

05-05-2025 

 

Summer 

Laborer - Temp 

 

 

$17.00/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

2/12/25. Entry 

Level Salary 

$17.00/hr 

 

Williams, 

Keondre 

 

 

 

Secondary Roads 

 

 

05-12-2025 

 

Summer 

Laborer - Temp 

 

 

$17.00/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

2/12/25. Entry 

Level Salary 

$17.00/hr 

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

04/17/2025 04/22/2025

Laura Sievers,  PE, Woodbury County Engineer

✔

✔

Receive bids for county pavement markings for 2025

The county engineer has prepared plans for the application of pavement markings on various paved roads in 
Woodbury County.

Annually the county reapplies paint to approximately 50% of its paved road system.  The proposed project will 
be completed during the 2025 construction season.

The project is paid for with local Woodbury County secondary road funds.

1)   I recommend that the Board receive bids for Pavement Markings - 2025 and return them to the county 
engineer for review and recommendation. 
2)   If quotes show a clear low quote, the engineer may recommend award at the Board meeting after opening 
the quotes.

1)  Motion to receive bids for Pavement Markings - 2025 and return them to the county engineer for review and 
recommendation. 
 
2)  Motion to award bid if low quote is clearly determined by bid results.







































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

04/17/2025 04/22/2025

Supervisor Bittinger

The LEC Authority and the County have identified available non-bond funds that the Authority has received over the course of the 
LEC project. A portion of the funds in the amount of $717,863.12 came from the County pursuant to a Board of Supervisor board 
action item on 05-17-2022. The Authority requests that the County expand the permissible uses for the site preparation funds in 
furtherance of the project.
 
Expanding the permissible uses for the County supplied site preparation funds will extinguish the need for any additional 28E 
Agreements now or in the foreseeable future from Woodbury County. 

The LEC Authority and the County have identified available non-bond funds that the Authority has received over the course of the 
LEC project. A portion of the funds in the amount of $717,863.12 came from the County pursuant to a Board of Supervisor board 
action item on 05-17-2022. The Authority requests that the County expand the permissible uses for the site preparation funds in 
furtherance of the project.
 
The original Board of Supervisor board action agenda item (attached) specifies that the funds can be used for the site preparations, 
site prep testing, gas service line and site prep misc for the project. The Authority requests that the funds can also be expended for 
the additional Project-related purposes of legal fees and costs, expert/consultant fees, project engineering/design fees, and owner 
rep. fees.

Expanding the permissible uses for the County supplied site preparation funds will extinguish the need for any additional 28E 
Agreements now or in the foreseeable future from Woodbury County. 

This proposal has been reviewed and approved by legal counsel. 

Consent for LEC Authority's Expanded Use of Site Preparation Funds

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

Woodbury County should not need to create another 28E agreement to fund the LEC Authority throughout final completion or legal 
mediation of the project.  
 

Motion to approve consent for the LEC Authority's use of $717,863.12 worth of funds provided by the County 
under the 05/17/2022 Board of Supervisors board action item for the additional Project-related purposes of 
legal fees and costs, expert/consultant fees, project engineering/design fees, and owner fees.

Motion to approve consent for the LEC Authority's use of $717,863.12 worth of funds provided by the 
County under the 05/17/2022 Board of Supervisors board action item for the additional Project-related 
purposes of legal fees and costs, expert/consultant fees, project engineering/design fees, and owner fees.





WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

4/17/2025 04/22/2025

Supervisor Bittinger & Nelson

AGP, Inc signed a development agreement between the Iowa Economic Development Authority and Woodbury County on 
November 15, 2024. 

AGP, Inc had targeted goals to accomplish and all have been met or exceeded except for the category of "Jobs To Be Created". 
The goal was 130 jobs but at the current moment they are at 128 jobs. 

The County needs to approve the amendment to waive the "Jobs To Be Created" requirement. 

See Contract Amendment
See Amendment to Development Agreement 
See financial information from AGP, Inc. 

Approval of Amendment to Development Agreement for AGP, Inc. 

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

N/A

Motion to approve amendment to development agreement for AGP, Inc. 

Motion to approve amendment to development agreement for AGP, Inc. 



AGP, Inc. Financial Information regarding Sgt. Bluff Processing Site:  

 

 

 

 Target  Projected 

Capital Spend $71.1M  $74.1M 

Jobs 
+2 

130 total 
 126 total 

Total Wages* $7.5M  $8.5M 

Project Completion Date 11/30/24  11/30/25 

Compliance with Regulations Yes  Yes 

Minimum Assessment $11.2M  $11.2M 

Tax Abatement None  None 

 

 







1 

 

 

 

AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

 THIS AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into 

effective as of the __22___ day of ___April________, 2025, by and between Woodbury County, 

Iowa (the “County”) and Ag Processing Inc a cooperative (the “Company”). 

 

 WHEREAS, County and Company previously entered into a Development Agreement 

dated March 1, 2022, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

incorporated herein by this reference (the “Agreement”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement required Company to maintain a certain “Base Employment 

Level” and create two (2) new full-time jobs (the “Job Obligations”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Company, despite its good faith efforts, has fallen below the Base 

Employment Level and has been unable to meet the job creation obligation as a result of tight labor 

market conditions in Woodbury County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, County is willing to waive the Job Obligations and Base Employment Level 

requirements of the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, County is authorized to modify the Agreement pursuant to Woodbury County 

Resolution 13,399. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 

herein and in the original Agreement, the parties agree to modify and amend the Agreement as 

follows: 

 

1. Paragraph 6 of the Agreement shall be, and hereby is, deleted and replaced with the 

following: 

 

6. Economic Development Assistance Contract.  The Company agrees 

that it will enter into, and maintain compliance under, a certain Economic Development 

Assistance Contract (the “IEDA Contract”) with the Iowa Economic Development 

Authority; provided, however, compliance with the Base Employment Level and Job 

Obligations set forth in the IEDA Contract are hereby waived.  At such time that the IEDA 

Contract is executed, it shall be inserted as Exhibit C of this Agreement. The Company 

agrees to submit documentation to the County no later than each October 15 during the 

Term, as hereinafter defined, commencing October 15, 2024 demonstrating that the 

Company is in compliance with the requirements of the IEDA Contract.  Furthermore, the 

Company agrees to provide written notice to the County within thirty (30) days of the 

receipt of any notification from IEDA that the Company has fallen out of compliance with 

the requirements of the IEDA Contract, other than the Base Employment Level and Job 

Obligations. 

 



2 

 

2. Paragraph 7 of the Agreement shall be, and hereby is, deleted and replaced with the 

following: 

 

7. Default Provisions. The following shall be “Events of Default” under this 

Agreement, and the term “Event of Default” shall mean, whenever it is used in this 

Agreement (unless otherwise provided), any one or more of the following events: 

 

a) Failure by the Company to commence and complete construction of the Project 

pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

 

b) Failure by the Company to fully and timely remit payment of property taxes when 

due and owing. 

 

c) Failure by the Company to keep the completed Project in service as part of its 

business operations on the Property throughout the Term, as hereinafter defined. 

 

d) Failure by the Company to maintain compliance with the IEDA Contract, excluding 

the Base Employment Level and Job Obligations requirements waived by County 

under Section 6 above.  

 

e) Failure by the Company to comply with Sections A.2, A.3, A.4, A.5, or A.6 of this 

Agreement. 

 

Whenever any event of default described in this Agreement occurs, the County shall 

provide written notice to the Company describing the cause of the default and the steps that 

must be taken by the Company in order to cure the default.  The Company shall have thirty 

(30) days after receipt of the notice to cure the default or to provide reasonable assurances 

satisfactory to County that the default will be cured as soon as reasonably possible.  If the 

Company fails to cure the default or provide reasonable assurances, the County shall then 

have the right to pursue any action available to it, at law or in equity, which may include: 

 

a) Pursue any action available to it, at law or in equity, in order to enforce the terms 

of this Agreement.  

 

b) Withholding of the Payments provided for under Section B.1 below. 

 

3. Except as specifically amended herein, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be duly executed 

in duplicate as of the day and year first above written. 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

      Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

Attest: 



3 

 

 

_________________________ 

County Auditor 

 

AG PROCESSING INC A COOPERATIVE 

 

By:____________________________________ 

Kyle Droescher 

Group Vice President Finance, 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

 
P:\Law\General\DAVE\AGP\Sgt Bluff\Woodbury Co - AGP Amendment to Development Agr - 4-10-25.docx 


